SUMMARY
HA 309

Chrome Valley Mill
1532 E. Jarrettsville Rd.
Jarrettsville, Md. 21084

Built in 1857 by Samuel Wetherill, this 3-story rubblestone grain mill
has been converted into a residence, although it still has the Mill wheel,
Mi1l pond and Mill race.

Among the Mill's owners were J. Jenks Kirk, the Baltimore Chrome Mining Co.,
and in 1919, Samuel Streett, whose flour sacks advertised: "Chrome Valley Mills,
Queen of the Pantry Flour, Sharon, Md.," The mil1l shut down soon after that
and stood vacant until 1959,



MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST HA-309

MAGI # 1303095504

INVENTORY FORM FOR STATE HISTORIC SITES SURVEY

HA-309

ﬁ NAME

HISTORIC

Wetherille Mill or Kirk's Mill, Stokes Mill

AND/OR COMMON

Chrome Valley Mill

EJLOCATION

STREET & NUMBER

1532 Jarrettsville Road, nr. Jarrettsville (North

side MD Rte. 23, on East branch

CITY. TOWN CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT
of Winters Run, 3 miles East of_Jarmettsville)
STATE COUNTY
EJ CLASSIFICATION
CATEGORY OWNERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
__DISTRICT __PUBLIC ‘iééCU PIED __AGRICULTURE —_—MUSEUM
= BUILDING(S) L/_L?"RWATE —UNOQOCCUPIED — COMMERCIAL _PABK
__STRUCTURE __BOTH __WORK IN PROGRESS __EDUCATIONAL i'_ﬁlVATE RESIDENCE
—-SITE PUBLIC ACQUISITION ACCESSIBLE __ENTERTAINMENT _RELIGIOUS
—OBJECT _-INPRQOCESS \ﬁES: RESTRICTED __GOVERNMENT __SCIENTIFIC
- __BEING CONSIDERED __YES  UNRESTRICTED __INDUSTRIAL —TRANSPORTATION
__NO —MILITARY __OTHER
PY OWNER OF PROPERTY
NAME

Mr. & Mrs. Robert Farmer

Telephone #:

S$TREET & NUMBER

1632 Jarrettsville Road

CiTY, TOWN
Jarrettsville, MD ___ VICINITY OF

STaTE, zl1lp code
21084

TELOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION

COURTHOUSE.
REG!STRY OF DEEDS, ETC

Harford County Courthouse

Liber #:
Folio #:

STREET & NUMBER

40 South Main Street

CITY TOWN

Bel Air, MD 21014

STATE

ﬂ REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS

TITLE

DATE

--FEDERAL _STATE __COUNTY __LOCAL

DEPOSITORY FOR
SURVEY RECORDS

CITY. TOWN

STATE




DESCRIPTION 5

CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
—_EXCELLENT __DETERIORATED __UNALTERED -OFIGINAL SITE
__GOOD __RUINS +~ALTERED __MOVED DATE
—FAIR __UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This 3-story rubblestone mill is located on the north side of Jarrettsville
Road (Md. Rt. 23), on the east branch of Winters Run, about 3 miles east of Jarrettsville.
The ridgeline of the gable-roofed mill is on an east-west axis, and the west end of
the s£ructure is banked so there are only 2-stories above grade there. The mill wheel
(temporarily disassembled) and trough is on the south side of the building. Various
alterations have been made to convert the mill into a residence; most hardware, doors,
and woodwork are replaced, although for the most part, the original openings were used.
Also, a brick chimney was added in the west end. The roof has a boxed cornice and
gables are board and batten.

The sides are arranged as follows: On the east end, the center bay contains a door
in each of the three stories, and the gable windows in the north bay, while there is an
additional entrance in the ground story south bay, a window above that in the second
story.

The north side has a door flanked by windows in the ground story and a window and
door in the second story.

The west end has an entrance in the center bay of the ground story, 2 windows in
the upper story, and 1 window in the gable.

The west side has a replaced center frame section with modern fenestration and
an original window opening in the third story east bay.

Although the interior has been re-modelled drastically, the hewn joists and roc¥
framing have been retained.

East of the house is the original mill pond, while north of the mill is the basin
for the mill race runoff and where the chrome ore was washed. The mill race, which
approached from the west towards the mill wheel on the south side of the mill, is aiso
still in evidence.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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According to molinographer, John Mc Grain, this mi1l was built in 1857 by Samuel
Wetherill, and indeed there is a plaque in the south wallreading "Wetherill's Mills/1857.
Although C. Milton Wright suggests there may have been a mill here earlier, there is no
record that there was a mill on the 1ot consisting of the tracts "Neils Paradise, Glady
Ground", and "Minster", purchased by Wetherill for $4000 from Edward Holloway and Archer
H. Jarrett, trustees. Mc Grain notes that in 1858 advertisement in the Southern Aegis
for the deceased Samuel Wetherill's estate lands the presence of "a large new grain mill,
3 pair of burrs, 1 of country stones.....saw mill."

McGrain's report indicates that J. Jenks Kirk bought the mill in 1860 and six years
later sold it to the Baltimore Chrome Mining Co. of Maryland. A trustees sale in 1868
advertises "Kirk's or Wetherill's Mi1l . . . containing about 55 acres of land, partly

_under cultivation, improved by a 2-story frame dwelling nearly new, frame stable, stone
i11 well provided with machinery, and a frame building with a large water wheel and 2
patteries of 5 stamps each for chrome ore...."

Samuel Streett purchased the mill in 1869, and after the sheriff seized the mill
in 1873, it was conveyed to William N. Hughes and R. Nelson Rampley. According to
McGrain, Streett probably operated the mill both before and after acquiring the title:
The 1867 Hawes Business Directory listed Streett grist and saw mill at Chrome Hill, while
the 1880 State directory listed A. & L. Street and also H. Streett as millers there.

McGrain's report continues that Hughes and Rampley sold to N. Oscar Stokes in 1883,
and he in turn sold it in 1919 to Samuel W. Streett. The second Streett's flour sacks
advertised Chrome Valley Mills, Queen of the Pantry Flour, Sharon, Md. The steel overshot
wheel purchased for a cost of $1780 in 1922 is @id by one newspaper (The Aegis) to have
been the largest of its kind in the country at that time.

The mi1l closed and stood vacant until 1959, when the property was sold to Mr. and
Mrs. James H. Campbell, who restored the upper two stories as a home. The mill was
acquired in 1973 by Mr. and Mrs. Robert Farmer, who are undertaking further improvements
and restoration of the mill complex.
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